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37 Legal Steps Toward Fair Housing    

Every year HUD celebrates April as Fair Housing month.  The 
theme for 2016 is “Shared Opportunity in Every Community”. 
 
Owners and Managing Agents must have a strong commitment 
to both the spirit and the letter of all the Fair Housing laws.  This 
commitment needs to be conveyed not only to the general 
public but also to their employees.  It is important that everyone 
understand the importance of the Fair Housing laws in the 
operation and management of a property.  
 
Remember that Fair Housing is not an option.  It is the law. And it 
is not just one law, but also many laws that started with the Fair 
Housing Act in 1968. 
 
HUD developed a document, The 37 Steps Toward Fair Housing. 
It depicts the issues, cases, developments and achievements 
that have been a part of this nation’s efforts to end 
discrimination and create equal housing opportunities for all 
since the Fair Housing Act was passed in April 1968. 
 
And although equality in housing remains elusive to many 
minorities, HUD continues to enforce current fair housing laws 
and policies with conviction, provide education to the public 
about their fair housing rights, and reach out to the housing 
industry to build the kinds of alliances that will help ensure that 
every resident of this nation is afforded the opportunity to live 
where they choose. 
 
Steps Toward Fair Housing   
 
1968 - Enactment of the Fair Housing Act- April 11, 1968. The Fair 
Housing Act, contained in Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 
prohibits discrimination in the sale, financing or rental of housing 
because of race, color, religion, and national origin. 
 
1969 - HUD issued the Title VIII Field Operations Handbook that 
institutionalized a formal complaint process. 
 
1970 - Shannon v. United States Department of HUD, 436 F.2d 809 
(3rd Cir. 1970), involved a decision by HUD to approve the 
development of a project in an urban renewal area that was 
racially and economically integrated. The plaintiffs claimed that 
the development of subsidized, low income housing in their 
neighborhood would destroy the existing racial and economic 
balance. The court held that HUD had to develop an institutional 
system for assessing the racial and socio-economic impact of 
the location of its projects. 

REGULATORY UPDATE 

 
 

It is not the intent but the 
effect of what we do that 
may cause discrimination! 

Fair Housing 
affects not 
only how we 
act and treat 
people in 
general, but 
also, how we 
construct 
apartment 
communities! 
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Steps Toward Fair Housing - continued 
 
1971 - Project Sentinel, a non-profit corporation, was founded. It primarily assists individuals who face housing 
problems such as discrimination, repairs, deposits, privacy, dispute resolution, and mortgage foreclosure. A group of 
leaders from the corporate, educational and labor communities, as well as local fair housing advocates, founded 
the agency, which has grown steadily since it was founded. Project Sentinel is now the largest such agency in 
Northern California, serving an overall population of 3.5 million. 
 
1972 - HUD implemented project selection criteria for funding affordable housing developments. These criteria are 
used to rank a project’s location by considering whether the site is in a non-minority concentrated, minority 
concentrated, or mixed area. The criteria provided a racial and socioeconomic framework for reviewing the 
impact of HUD’s project approval on neighborhoods where the development will be located. 
 
1973 - Enactment of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability in programs and activities conducted by HUD or those receiving financial assistance from HUD. 
 
1974 - Sex is added as a protected class under the Fair Housing Act. 
 
1975 - Southern Burlington County N.A.A.C.P. v. Township of Mount Laurel, 67 N.J. 151 (1975) (commonly known as 
Mount Laurel I). In this case, the plaintiffs challenged the zoning ordinance of Mount Laurel Township, New Jersey on 
the grounds that the town operated to exclude low and moderate-income persons from obtaining housing in the 
municipality.  
 
1976 - The Supreme Court ruled that a developing municipality might not use a land use regulatory scheme in order 
to prevent low and moderate-income persons from obtaining housing in the municipality. 
 
1977 - Congress amended the Equal Credit Opportunity Act to prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
religion, national origin, age, or receipt of public assistance. Congress enacted the Community Reinvestment Act 
(“CRA”). This act encourages banks to meet the credit needs of the local communities in which the banks operate. 
This includes addressing the needs of low-to moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA responded to the often 
underdeveloped and inadequate flow of capital funds into low-income neighborhoods to aid in the fostering of 
neighborhood development, economic growth, and wealth building. 
 
1978 - A federal district court in Ohio held, for the first time, that the 1968 Fair Housing Act prohibited insurance 
redlining. 
 
1979 - Gladstone Realtors vs. Village of Bellwood, 441 U.S. 91(1979) - In this case heard before the Supreme Court, 
residents accused two brokers of racial steering thereby impeding the homeowner’s access to the benefits of living 
in an integrated setting. The Supreme Court held that the village and homeowners in a racially changing area have 
standing to challenge steering practices as indirect victims of housing bias. Furthermore, the Court determined that 
a municipality could be injured when its racial composition is adversely affected by race discrimination. 
 
1980 - The Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP) received its first Congressional appropriation. FHAP is a HUD 
program that provides financial assistance to state and local agencies enforcing fair housing laws that are 
“substantially equivalent” to the Fair Housing Act. 
 
1981 - Majors v. Housing Authority of the County of Dekalb, 665 F.2d 454 (5th Cir. 1981) - A tenant with a 
documented history of mental illness kept a dog in her apartment despite the housing authority’s “no pets” policy. 
The housing authority refused to waive the “no pets” policy and brought eviction proceedings. The tenant filed a 
complaint in federal district court alleging that the housing authority violated Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
by failing to waive its “no pets” policy as a reasonable accommodation for her disability. The district court granted 
the housing authority’s motion for summary judgment and the tenant appealed. The court of appeals held that the 
housing authority had deprived the tenant of the benefits of the housing program by enforcing the “no pets” rule, 
reasoning that waiving the “no pets” rule would allow the tenant to fully enjoy the benefits of the program and 
would place no undue burdens on the housing authority. 
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Steps Toward Fair Housing - continued  
 
1982 - Havens Realty Corp. v. Coleman, 455 U. S. 363 (1982). Complainants alleged respondents engaged in racial 
steering in violation of Section 804 of the Fair Housing Act. The complainants included a prospective renter, two 
testers and HOME, a fair housing organization located in Richmond, Virginia. The Supreme Court held that the testers 
had standing to sue because they alleged that the neighborhood was damaged by the denial of interracial 
associations, and that the fair housing organization had standing to sue because the owner’s racial steering 
practices impaired HOME’s ability to provide housing counseling and referral services. 
 
1983 - Housing and Urban-Rural Recovery Act of 1983 created the housing voucher program as an alternative to 
Section 8 rent certificates. These vouchers may afford families’ wider housing choices. 
 
1984 - McDiarmid v. Economy Fire and Casualty Co, 604 F. Supp.105 (S.D. Ohio 1984) - In this case, the Federal District 
Court of Ohio held that the Fair Housing Act applies to homeowners insurance discrimination, despite the fact that 
insurance is not specifically mentioned in the Act. 
 
1985 - In response to the Mount Laurel Decision, the New Jersey Legislature passed the state’s “Fair Housing Act,” 
accepting the premise that there was some constitutional obligation for municipalities to foster some degree of 
affordable housing. This legislation created the Council on Affordable Housing (COAH), an administrative agency 
established to facilitate the creation of affordable housing through regulatory guidance. 
 
1986 - Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC), created through the Tax Reform Act of 1986, is a resource that allows 
state and local authorities to provide tax credits to developers that rehabilitate, acquire, or construct new housing 
that targets low-to moderate-income households, thus generating affordable housing. 
 
1987 - Section 561 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1987, 42 U.S.C. 3616, established the Fair 
Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP) to strengthen the Department’s enforcement of the Fair Housing Act and to further 
fair housing. FHIP funds fair housing organizations and other non-profit groups to provide vital services to their 
communities. These services include providing education and outreach activities so that community members are 
aware of their rights. FHIPs also conduct investigatory and enforcement activities, offering an outlet for community 
members who may have fair housing related complaints. There are approximately 100 fair housing organizations 
nationwide. In FY 2007, FHIP is funded at $18,100,000. 
 
1988 - The Fair Housing Amendments Act (FHAA) added disability and familial status (the presence or anticipated 
presence of children under 18 in a household) to the Fair Housing Act’s list of protected classes. The FHAA made 
major changes to the enforcement actions under the Act, giving more authority to the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development to enforce the fair housing law. The FHAA extended the statute of limitations for federal lawsuits 
from 180 days to two years and removes a $1,000 cap on punitive damages. The FHAA also opened up new 
avenues for enforcement of the rights of people with disabilities to live in the housing of their choice. For the first 
time, private-party transactions, where disability discrimination takes place, were subject to scrutiny in federal court. 
 
1989 - HUD v. Blackwell, 1989 WL 386958 (HUD ALJ 1989) - This was the first case to be prosecuted under HUD’s 
enforcement authority created by the amended Fair Housing Act. The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) held that the 
respondent violated the Fair Housing Act on the basis of race. The ALJ ordered respondents to sell the property in 
question to one of the complainants, as well as to pay actual damages of over $65,000 and a civil money penalty of 
$10,000. 
 
1990 - The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) was enacted on July 2, 1990. ADA prohibits private employers, state 
and local governments, employment agencies and labor unions from discriminating against qualified individuals 
with disabilities in job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, job training, and other 
terms, conditions and privileges of employment. 
 
1991 - Fair Housing Accessibility Guidelines were adopted by HUD to provide builders and developers with technical 
guidance on how to comply with the specific accessibility requirements of the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 
1988. 
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Steps Toward Fair Housing - continued  
 
1992 - Authority was given to conduct Moving to Opportunity for Fair Housing (MTO) as part of § 152 of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1992. MTO is a research demonstration that combined tenant-based rental 
assistance with housing counseling to help very low-income families move from poverty stricken urban areas to low-
poverty neighborhoods. 
 
1993 - Empowerment Zone and Enterprise Community Programs were created under the Federal Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act of 1993 as a strategy to promote revitalization efforts in economically distressed urban/rural areas. 
 
1994 - Executive Order 12892, as amended, requires federal agencies to affirmatively further fair housing in their 
programs and activities, and provides that the Secretary of HUD will be responsible for coordinating this effort. The 
Executive Order also established the President’s Fair Housing Council, to be chaired by the Secretary of HUD. 
 
1998 - HUD v. Perland Corp. et al., 1998 WL 142159 (HUD ALJ 1998) - This case involved a complaint that was filed by 
the Will-Grundy Center for Independent Living, alleging discrimination in violation of the Fair Housing Act’s 
requirement that certain multifamily housing be designed and constructed to provide accessibility features. In this 
case of first impression, the Administrative Law Judge held that the respondents violated the Fair Housing Act’s 
design and construction requirements and orders the property owned by the respondents to be brought into 
compliance, and that each respondent must pay a $3,000 civil money penalty.  
 
1999 - Executive Order 13166, Improving Access for Limited English Proficiency (LEPs), requires that federal agencies 
take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to federally conducted and assisted programs and activities for 
limited English proficient individuals. This involves determining language needs and providing appropriate language 
assistance to LEP individuals. 
 
2000 - Housing Discrimination Study (HDS 2000), a national housing discrimination study sponsored by HUD to measure 
patterns of racial and ethnic discrimination in urban housing markets, was released. The study involved three phases 
of paired testing focusing on the levels of housing discrimination experienced by African-Americans, Hispanics, Asian 
and Pacific Islanders, and Native Americans. 
 
2001 - Olmstead Executive Order 13217 was signed by President Bush implementing the Olmstead decision, which 
provides that the federal government should ensure placement of individuals with disabilities, whenever possible, in 
community settings rather than institutionalized environments. 
 
2002 - HUD and the National Association of Home Builders (NAHB) entered into a partnership to educate and train 
persons in the housing industry about their obligations to provide accessible housing to persons with disabilities. 
 
2003 - The National Fair Housing Ad Campaign, featuring public service announcements highlighting fair housing 
laws and providing victims of housing discrimination with vital information about their rights in the Fair Housing Act, 
was launched. 
 
2004 - The National Fair Housing Training Academy, which trains housing discrimination investigators of FHAP 
agencies on processes to use in conducting thorough, high quality and timely investigations, was established. 
 
2005 - HUD and the Department of Justice (DOJ) issued a Joint Statement on Reasonable Accommodations under 
the Fair Housing Act that provides technical assistance to persons with disabilities and housing providers regarding 
their rights and obligations under the Act regarding reasonable accommodations. 
 
2006 - HUD charged Erie Insurance Group and five agencies licensed to sell Erie insurance products with violating the 
Fair Housing Act. Homeowners who lived in African-American neighborhoods were more likely to receive inferior 
insurance products from Erie than those homeowners living in white neighborhoods with comparable homes. 
 
2007 - HUD published its ‘‘Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against 
National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons.” Guidance Executive Order was 
published to clarify recipients’ obligations to LEP persons. The effective date of the Guidance is March 17, 2007. 
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Fair Housing Tips for Maintenance 
 

1. Do you ever provide services to current residents? 
 

2. Do you talk to any of the following people during your workday? 
 

a. Future residents 
b. Current residents 
c. Resident’s guests 
d. Other staff/team members 
e. Contractors or suppliers 

 
3. If you do, then you need to know: 

 
a. Everyone can be held personally responsible for their actions when it comes to Fair Housing 

Laws 
b. Personal statements can be discriminatory 
c. How to deal with persons with disabilities 
d. The importance of accurate records 
e. Everyone engaged in the property management must obey the Fair Housing Laws 
f. You can’t discriminate against applicants/residents because of their guest’s/friend’s protected 

status 
g. Fair Housing affects not only how we act and treat people, but how we construct an 

apartments 
h. It is not the intent but the effect of what we do that may cause discrimination 
i. Most issues between management/maintenance and applicants/residents are the result of 

poor communication 
j. You should always talk to everyone as if you were talking to a tester 
k. Residents may not always like or agree with what you can do for them, but as long as you treat 

each one fairly and consistently, they will respect you for it 
l. Everyone wants to be treated with respect 

 
 

Remember ACE 
 

Accuracy – Consistency – Equality 
 

WOW means: doing what you say you will, when you say you will, how you say you will 
 
 
Set realistic expectations for quality and service level, then under promise but over deliver. Taking the time to 
respond courteously to all those with whom you come in contact. Your service is only as professional as the 
personnel who deliver it! 
 
Practice Habits of Courtesy 
 

1. Everyone has the right to expect courtesy from you — the more you give the more you will get back 
2. Practicing on-the-job courtesy 
3. Treat customers like you want to be treated 
4. Give respect to get respect 
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What is Independent Living?  
 
For as long as I can remember, the question of “What is Independent Living?” has been interpreted or 
misinterpreted, as the case may be. I have always told anyone who asks that in dealing with the HUD 
programs found in the HUD 4350.3, managers verify eligibility not disability. What managers care about, is 
the ability of residents to adhere to the lease, not how they adhere but that they adhere to the lease. 
 
So, why do most managers still want to ask or ask all their applicants the question “Can you live 
independently?” And, when they are told that they should not be asking this question, they honestly seem 
surprised. Is this question legal or is it illegal? Where is it found in the Fair Housing laws? Why can’t managers 
ask this question? In trying to research these questions, I found the following “Fact Sheet on Independent 
Living” by the Bazelon Center. 
 
For three decades, the Judge David L. Bazelon Center for Mental Health Law has been the nation's 
leading legal advocate for people with mental disabilities. Their precedent-setting litigation has outlawed 
institutional abuse and won protections against arbitrary confinement. In the courts and in Congress, their 
advocacy has opened up public schools, workplaces, housing and other opportunities for people with 
mental disabilities to participate in community life. 
 
The Fair Housing Act (FHA) is an equal-opportunity statute; it protects people’s choice to live where they 
want to live. That principle is easy to understand in the context of a real estate agent who turns an African-
American family away from houses in predominantly white neighborhoods, or a rental manager who will 
not rent to families with children. For seniors and younger people with disabilities, equal opportunity means 
having a broad spectrum of housing choices—including single-family homes, condominiums, and rental 
communities—in a variety of settings that include people of all ages and abilities living side by side. In 
addition, people who are older or have disabilities may need or want housing that offers support and 
medical services for their special needs. 
 
Few housing providers hang up a sign that says “no people with disabilities allowed.” However, application 
policies may bar people with disabilities just as effectively and in ways the potential resident may not even 
know are illegal. Although it is clearly prohibited by the FHA, some housing providers still require applicants 
to demonstrate that they are “capable of living independently,” and ask questions about their medical 
history as part of the application process. 
 
These types of illegal requirements are especially pernicious because both the housing provider and the 
applicant may believe they are “for the good” of the person with a disability. The FHA explicitly prohibits 
inquiries into the “nature or severity” of a disability, yet providers frequently try to justify these inquiries as an 
attempt to “help” the applicant. 
 
Housing providers must base their decisions on whether the applicant can meet the tenancy obligations: 
paying rent, complying with reasonable residential rules, not damaging the premises and not unduly 
disturbing others. 
 
The courts have held that tenants are free to meet the obligations of tenancy with or without assistance. 
Just as a tenant may hire a maid to clean the house, so may he or she rely on family members, social 
service workers or paid service providers. 
 
So, managers you have your answer. Continue to be consistent in screening all applicants, verifying their 
ability to adhere to the lease, because that is really what we want from all residents. 
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When Applicants Or Residents Need Accessible Features or Apartments 
 
From the Desk of Kathi Williams, Fair Housing Attorney: 
 
The ultimate issue is “what does it take for an applicant or resident to receive a priority for an accessible unit 
when the features are needed. It is obvious when a full or part time wheel chair user needs a fully 
accessible unit. Beyond that, the criteria are really unclear. Of all the accessible features of a UFAS or fully 
accessible unit, the following features are ranked according to importance: 
 
1. Wide doors (usually a 36 inch door, but at least 32” of clear floor space 
2. Larger kitchens and baths so a person using a wheel chair can use facilities 
3. Roll in shower (while not necessary, is often useful in a UFAS unit) 
4. Roll under sinks in bath and kitchen with insulated and covered pipes 
5. Lowered area of counter top 
6. Lowered cabinets 
7. Switches, outlets, thermostats and control should be within reach range 
8. Kitchen range should have front-mounted controls 
9. Kitchen refrigerator should side-by-side or have 50% of freezer access 

below 54” 
10. Lowered pile carpet 
11. Handheld shower nozzle 
12. Mirror in bathroom should tilt or be less that 40” off floor 
13. Grab bars in place for toilet and shower 
14. Lever hardware throughout unit 
15. Lowered clothes bars in closets 
 
With all these features, the issue is which of these features is unique to a UFAS unit and which could be 
added later to a standard unit as a reasonable modification without too much expense or construction? 
Some of these items are easy fixes. The first 2 features, however, are nearly impossible to do to an existing 
unit without gutting the unit and reconstructing it. On the other hand (no pun intended), some 
applicants/residents don’t use a wheelchair but perhaps a walker and sit down to do work in the kitchen 
and can use most of the kitchen features. It may also be useful for this person to have a roll under sink in the 
bathroom to pull a chair under. These residents will also often need the extra grab bars in the bathroom. 
Some applicants/residents don’t have walking or standing problems, but need lever hardware do to hand 
mobility issues. 
 
To my knowledge, there is no guidance on this issue from HUD or case law. That’s why I think it’s important 
for an owner/agent to list the features of their accessible units and ask applicants and residents which of 
the features are needed. Somewhere there should be a common sense approach that they qualify for the 
priority for an accessible unit. If an applicant or resident does not need the first 3, but needs a couple of the 
other accessible features which can be made to the unit the applicant or resident is assigned or transferred 
to, then they do not receive a priority for a fully accessible unit. 
 
The problem with this approach is that immediately upon an owner/agent implementing it, there will be a 
unique situation and applying an inflexible rule to whether someone is provided the priority for an 
accessible unit will get them in trouble with HUD, since HUD has no standards at all. At the same time I do 
not think that anyone needing one or two modifications to their units should receive the priority to the 
accessible units. So the question is, where to draw the line, and how to draw it? 
 
NOTE: This does NOT mean that you are to establish a policy as it is not required but it meant to make us 
think — one of those “AHA” moments. 

Verify Eligibility 

Not Disability 
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Is it a pet or a companion, assistance or service animal? Does it matter? Yes, it matters and it matters a lot! 
 
Assistance animals are not pets. They are animals that work, provide assistance, or perform tasks for the 
benefit of a person with a disability, or animals that provide emotional support that alleviate one or more 
identified symptoms or effects of a person's disability.  Assistance animals – often referred to as “service 
animals,” "assistance animals," “support animals,” or “therapy animals” – perform many disability-related 
functions, including but not limited to guiding individuals who are blind or have low vision, alerting 
individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing to sounds, providing minimal protection or rescue assistance, 
pulling a wheelchair, fetching items, alerting persons to impending seizures, or providing emotional support 
to persons with disabilities who have a disability-related need for such support.   
 
These animals require a reasonable accommodation.  A “reasonable accommodation” is a change, 
exception, or adjustment to a rule, policy, practice, or service that may be necessary for a person with a 
disability to have an equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling, including public and common use 
spaces.  
 
No one wants to deny a reasonable accommodation that is needed by a person with a disability.  To help 
assure that this does not happen, owner/agents should have a written “Reasonable Accommodation and 
Modification” policy so that applicants, residents and management staff are working under the same 
guidelines.   
 
One of the most requested accommodations is for an assistance animal.  And, with or without a "no pets" or 
even with a “pets” policy, applicants and residents have the right to request an “assistance animal” to 
accommodate their disability.   And, if the request is determined to be reasonable based on the Fair 
Housing laws, the owner/agent must make an exception to its “no pets or pets” policy to accommodate 
the request.  
 
Applicants or residents are not required to pay a fee or a security deposit as a condition of allowing them to 
keep an animal because of their disability. 
 
Expenses for “assistance animal upkeep” are deductible when calculating a tenant’s annual income, 
because they may be counted as medical expenses.   
 
An O/A may not refuse to allow a person with a disability to have an assistance animal merely because the 
animal does not have formal training.  Some, but not all, animals that assist persons with disabilities are 
professionally trained.  Other assistance animals are trained by the owners themselves and, in some cases, 
no special training is required.  The question is whether or not the animal performs the disability-related 
assistance or provides the disability-related benefit needed by the person with the disability. 
 
An O/A’s refusal to modify or provide an exception to a "no pets" rule or policy to permit a person with a 
disability to use and live with an assistance animal would violate Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and 
the Fair Housing Act unless: 
 
1. The animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others that cannot be reduced or eliminated 

by a reasonable accommodation, 
2. The animal would cause substantial physical damage to the property of others, or 
3. The presence of the assistance animal would pose an undue financial and administrative burden to the 

provider. 
 
The fact that a person has a disability does not automatically entitle him or her to an assistance animal.  
There must be a nexus (relationship) between the person’s disability and his or her need for the animal. 
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Reasonable Accommodations and Modifications 
 
 

1. O/As have a legal obligation to provide accommodations and/or modifications. 
 

2. 504 Coordinator should keep a log with pertinent facts with regard to “request/verification/achieved” 
for accommodations and/or modifications.  

 

3. If O/A is unable or unwilling to provide an accommodation or modification requested  OR  if O/A is 
unclear how the requested accommodation is connected to the resident’s disability, an interactive 
meeting should be scheduled. 

 

4. An interactive meeting: 
 

a. Purpose – to resolve questions or concerns in a non-confrontational manner. 
b. O/A representative should be able to conduct the meeting in a professional, dispassionate, 

objective and cautious manner. 
c. O/A representative does not have to be the final decision maker. 

 

NOTE:   
 

• When an owner, managing entity, or project employs 15 or more people, regardless of their location or 
duties, the owner or managing entity must also designate one person for the property to coordinate 
efforts to comply with Section 504 requirements.  

 

• This does not exempt owners, managing entities, or projects with fewer than 15 employees from 
complying with Section 504 requirements, but merely exempts the owner from having to designate a 
person to coordinate compliance efforts. At the owner’s discretion, this person may handle Section 504 
matters for more than one property. 

 

• All O/As should have a person designated to coordinate compliance with the nondiscrimination 
requirements against persons with disabilities.  

 

• If the O/A is not required to have a Section 504 coordinator then there should be a point person to 
coordinate compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements against persons with disabilities. 

Reminders 

Volume 15 Special Fair Housing Issue April 2016 
 

Reasonable Accommodations and Modifications 
 
Almost every day, managers receive requests to make accommodations to policies and procedures as well 
as physical modifications.  We are required by law to make reasonable accommodations in our rules, 
policies, practices or services as well as physical modifications when such accommodations may be 
necessary to afford people with disabilities an equal opportunity to use and enjoy their apartments.   
 
Always try to require that the request be in writing. And, always respond in writing, whatever the response is.   
 
If you feel that you must deny a request, at all times, attempt to provide an alternate solution to a resident 
request before denying the request.  If you absolutely have to refuse a request, explain in detail why the 
request has to be denied. Never deny a request without discussing it with your Section 504 Coordinator. 
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Five Facts About Familial Status Housing Rights 

Federal law makes it illegal for housing 
developers, landlords, and even homeowners 
associations to deny housing to families with 
children or to place unreasonable restrictions 
on children. 

1. Households with child(ren) cannot be 
denied housing even if the housing is 
elderly housing. 

2. Households with child(ren)cannot be 
evicted from housing just because there 
are children in the household. Eviction is 
illegal because household is expecting or 
has given birth to, adopted, or obtained 
custody of a child. 

3. Households with child(ren) cannot be 
restricted to one area of a building, 
restricted to lower floors or to certain 
areas of the property. 

4. Community Policies (House Rules) cannot 
unfairly target children such as forbidding 
children from a common area that adults 
are allowed to use. 

5. Property advertisements cannot state that 
property is restricted to adults and 
children are not wanted. 
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Is Your Property Fair Housing Compliant? 
 
• Are your policies and procedures updated? 
• Are all policies and procedures being followed 

consistently? 
• Are you keeping up with regulations? 
• Are you keeping a file (paper or electronic) with 

articles educating staff regarding FHAA, ADA, and 
Section 504 information? 

• Do any additional state or local fair housing laws 
cover your property? 

• Do you really know what type of property you have 
and which laws govern it? 

• How often do you attend Fair Housing training 
whenever it is in your area? 

• Do you hold staff meetings to discuss Fair Housing with 
all employees? 

• Do you review the Section 504 Self Evaluation & 
Transition plan, updating annually? 

Rejecting Applications not Applicants 
 
Do you reject applicants or applications?  
 
What’s the best way to deal with a rejected application?  
 
Applications are rejected because they do not meet the 
tenant selection plan established for your property.  
Rejecting an application is based on a business decision 
not a personal reason. 
 
Always remember it is the application you’re rejecting, 
not the applicant.  

Lease Violations 
 
No matter how minor a lease violation is, it is 
very important that the resident be issued the 
lease violation.  
 
The lease violation should state what section 
of the lease has been violated and how it 
was violated.  
 
The resident needs to be told what they can 
do to correct the violation and the 
consequences of not correcting.  
 
Consistency is very important in lease 
violations and evictions. It is possible that 
misunderstandings and/or inconsistencies in 
adhering to eviction procedures might lead 
to the filing of a Fair Housing discrimination 
claim. 

Resident Selection 
 
Nothing in the Fair Housing Amendments Act (FHAA) or 
Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act (504) diminishes 
the right of management to select residents who can 
meet the basic obligations of residency -- which include 
paying their rent on time, obeying basic rules of tenancy 
designed to preserve the peaceful enjoyment of all 
residents and to protect the physical condition of the 
apartment community.  All applicants/prospects are 
required to meet the resident selection guidelines that are 
not discriminatory.  Consistency is the key to applying all 
policies to everyone equally, your adherence to being 
equally fair to all people. 
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Fair Housing Act Enforcement Activity 
 
HUD investigates complaints of housing 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, 
national origin, sex, disability, or familial status. At 
no cost to you, HUD will investigate the complaint 
and try to conciliate the matter with both parties. 
If conciliation fails, HUD will determine whether 
"reasonable cause" exists to believe that a 
discriminatory housing practice has taken place. If 
HUD finds "no reasonable cause," we will dismiss 
the complaint. 
 
If HUD finds reasonable cause, HUD will issue a 
charge of discrimination and schedule a hearing 
before a HUD administrative law judge (ALJ). Either 
party may elect to proceed in federal court. In 
that case, the Department of Justice will pursue 
the case on behalf of the complainant. The 
decisions of the ALJ and the federal district court 
are subject to review by the U.S. Court of Appeals. 
 

                   
 
 
In 2015, HUD issued a total of thirteen charges of 
discrimination based on disability, sex, race and 
one based on familial status. And, they are as 
listed: 
 
Twelve (12) of nineteen (19) the charges of 
discrimination were based disability. 
 
Five (5) charges of discrimination were based on 
familial status. 
 
One (1) charge of discrimination was based on 
sex. 
 
One (1) charge of discrimination was based on 
race. 

Subject to Fair Housing 
 
As owners and managing agents of federally 
regulated properties, we are subject to additional 
“fair housing” laws, which affect the admission, 
occupancy, and eviction policies by which we 
operate our properties. 
 
The following are what I like to call the “Basic 
Objectives of Fair Housing”: 
 
1. Know that fair housing is more than just 7 

federal protected classes 
 
2. Be able to explain the difference between 

intent and effect 
 
3. Know how to deal with persons with 

disabilities 
 
4. Know the importance of accurate records 

and make sure yours records are 
 
5. Know that personal statements can be 

discriminatory 
 
6. Know that you can be held responsible for 

anything you say and do 
 
How do you make sure that your property is in 
compliance? 
 
• Make sure that your policies and procedures 

have been updated 
• Reaffirm that all policies and procedures are 

being followed consistently 
• Read and keep a file on regulations, articles 

and other FHAA, ADA, 504 
• Determine if there are any additional state or 

local fair housing laws 
• Determine what type of property you have 

and which laws govern 
• Attend fair housing training whenever it is in 

your area 
• Hold staff meetings to discuss fair housing with 

all employees 
• Review Section 504 Self Evaluation & Transition 

plan – update annually 
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Fair Housing & Section 504 

 

Our property has a strong commitment to 
both the spirit and the letter of the Fair 
Housing laws and continues to convey this 
promise to its employees, its residents, and 
to the general public. 

According to Access Living, an advocacy group for people with disabilities, dehumanizing, offensive 
language limits perceptually how individuals with disabilities can participate in the community or the 
apartment living environment. Persons with disabilities are a stable rental population with minimal turnover. 
Sensitivity to their needs is important. The following are suggestions for appropriate language: 
 
• Put people first, not their disability. Say “women with arthritis”, “children who are deaf”, “people with 

disabilities”. Place the focus on the individual not the particular functional limitation. 
 
• Do not use generic labels for disability groups, such as “the retarded” or “the deaf”. Say “people with 

mental retardation” or “people who are deaf”. 
 
• Avoid crippled, deformed, suffers from, victim of, the retarded, etc. These are never acceptable under 

any circumstances. 
 
• Do not refer to successful people with disabilities as superhuman. Even though they are admired, 

implying that they have accomplished something as superstars creates false expectations for others with 
disabilities. 

 
• Emphasize abilities, not limitations. Consider: Uses a wheelchair or braces, walks with crutches, rather 

than confined to a wheelchair, wheelchair-bound, or is crippled. 
 
Remember, we verify eligibility not disability. For anyone to live in one of our apartment communities we 
verify their ability to adhere to the Lease, not how they adhere, just that they must adhere! 
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Accessibility Etiquette 


